
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 11 March 2014 at 7.30pm 
Council Chamber - Civic Centre 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any matters on 

the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 3) 
 
 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2014. 

 
4. Matters Arising   
 
5. Written Questions and Petitions   
 
6. Committee Work Plan  (Page 4) 
 
7. Scheduling of Sub-Committee Hearings: Update  (Pages 5 - 7) 
 
8. Consultation on Fees under the Licensing Act 2003  (Pages 8 - 25) 
 
9. References from Other Committees   
 
 Any references arising from meetings held after the publication of this 

agenda will be circulated separately. 
 

10. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 

considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to 
be specified in the minutes. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 

 

14 January 2014 7.30pm  - 8.25pm 
 

 

PRESENT 

 

Committee Members 
Councillor Ian Beckett (Chairman) 
Councillor Edna Stevens (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Nick Churchill 
Councillor Tony Durcan 
Councillor Tony Hall 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop 
 

 
Officers 

Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager 
Dimple Roopchand, Assistant Solicitor 
Jo Maskell, Governance Support Officer 
 

 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor Waida Forman 
Councillor Guy Mitchinson 
Councillor Linda Pailing 
 
 
 
 
30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

31. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 
2013 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.   

 
32. MATTERS ARISING  

 
(a) Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 – Implementation of the Act and   

Scheme of Delegation 
(Minute 23(a) Refers) 
 
The Chairman tabled a briefing note which explained the 
circumstances in which a quarantine period may be imposed, 
before scrap metal dealers could dispose of metal. 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

1



(b) Food Safety Act 1990 Service Plan 2013/2014 
(Minute 26(a) Refers) 
 
The Chairman tabled a copy of his press release which highlighted 
the work being done to encourage compliance with food safety 
standards across the town, and drew attention to the posting of food 
premises’ ratings on the Council’s website. 
 
Members noted that the food sampling programme set out in the 
Plan related to bacteriological testing and not food composition, 
which was the responsibility of Essex County Council. 
 
The possibility of requiring businesses to display their ‘star ratings’ 
at their premises was being investigated and the outcome would be 
reported back to the Committee. 

 
33. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  

 
None. 
 

34. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received its Work Plan for 2013/14.  
 
 RESOLVED that  
 

(a) the Committee Work Plan is noted; 
 

(b) the Licensing of A-Boards is allocated to the March meeting; 
 
(c) National Compliance Testing is added under “unallocated”; 
 
(d) Add report back on requirement to display star ratings to 

“unallocated”.  
 

35. HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT SERVICE PLAN 2013/14  

 
The Committee received Environmental Health’s proposed Health & 
Safety Enforcement Service Plan for 2013/14 for approval. 
 

RESOLVED that the Health and Safety Enforcement Service Plan 
2013/14, at Appendix 1 of the report, is noted and approved. 

 
36. LICENSING SERVICE PLAN 2013/14  

 
The Committee received the proposed Licensing Service Plan for 2013/14. 
 

RESOLVED that the Licensing Service Plan 2013/14, attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report, is approved. 

 

2



37. SCHEDULING OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES  

 
The Committee received a report proposing that its Licensing Sub-
Committees are scheduled  in the diary, rather than with the current 
practice of calling meetings on an ad hoc basis.  
 
 RESOLVED that 
 

(a) Licensing Sub-Committee hearings are scheduled in advance 
each year; 

 
(b) Option A for the allocation of members to the Sub-Committee, 

as set out in paragraph 12 of the report, is adopted; 
 
(c) An update on this method is given to the March meeting of this 

Committee. 
 

38. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

39. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
The Chairman ruled the following item as matters of urgent business: 
 

(a) Private Hire Services 
 

The Chairman reported that contrary to rules precluding touting, a 
hoarding had been displayed outside Asda, advertising that a 
private hire company’s staff would book journeys on behalf of 
members of the public.    
 
He announced that the Licensing Team had addressed this 
problem.  Officers had advised the operator of the legal 
requirements and had reached agreement that the hoardings would 
be removed.  The reported ‘touting’ would be investigated. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

3



LICENSING COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2013/14       
 

   

Unallocated Items  

o  Report back on requirement to display star 
ratings (34, 14/1/14) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 

o  National Compliance Testing (34, 14/1/14) Michael Pitt 
 

o  Update the Street Trading Licensing Policy  
         to Take Account of Revised Legislation  
        (awaiting Government proposals) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 
 

o  Review of the Policy for Charity Collections 
(25,12/11/13 – awaiting completion of work re: co-
ordinating with Essex Councils for a model policy) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 

o  Licensing of A-Boards (25, 12/11/13)  Michael Pitt 
 

Standing Items  

o Quarterly Reporting of Statistical Data 
from NHS (40, 22/1/13) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 

o Licensing Sub-Committee Decisions 
(annual report to first meeting in the municipal year 
6,9/7/13) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

4



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2014 
 

TITLE: SCHEDULING OF SUB-COMMITTEE 
HEARINGS: UPDATE 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

MICHAEL PITT ENVIRONMENT AND 
LICENSING MANAGER (01279) 446114 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:  PAULINE WRIGHT SENIOR 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 
(01279) 446148 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Committee approve the proposed timetable and arrangements for Sub-

committee hearings set out in Appendix A to the report. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Licensing Committee at its meeting of 14 January 2014 approved 

proposals in principle to schedule Sub-committees in advance in order to 
stream-line arrangements for hearings. 
 

2. Of the options then presented the Committee favoured the option of 
allocation of Committee Members in advance to pre-booked hearing dates.  
 

3. Officers were asked to contactMembers of the Committee to assess 
availability and preference for hearing dates to seek the best fit, and to bring 
a further report to the Committee. 
 

 
ISSUES/PROPOSALS 

4. Members of the Committee were contacted as directed and have set out 
atimetable for Sub-committee meetings which is shown at Appendix A. 
 

5. This allocates individual Members to Sub-committees in March and April; 
further dates for meetings will be added as the Room Bookings Diary is 
updated, and allocations to subsequent dates would be made following the 
local government elections in May 2014. 
 

6. Members allocated to Sub-committee meetings will be informed two weeks 
before the date of the meeting if the hearing is to be cancelled due to lack of 
business. 

Agenda Item 7

5



 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

Proposals intended to reduce potential for delay in licensing applicants should 
contribute to supporting enterprise. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
None specific. 

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

 
Housing 

None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

Reducing potential for delay should improve customer service 

Author: Lynn Seward, Head of Community Wellbeing 

 
Governance (includes HR) 
None specific. 

Author: Brian Keane, Interim Head of Governance 

 

 

6



Appendix  A 

 

 

 

Sub-Committee Dates March 2014- December 2014 

 

Date 
 

Time  Room Members 

6 March 2014 19.30 CR2B Cllr Mitchinson 
Cllr Churchill 
Cllr Pailing 
 

1 April 2014 14.00 CR2B Cllr Stevens 
Cllr Hall 
Cllr Hulcoop 
 

12June 2014 
 

19.30 CR2B 
 

 

15 July 2014 
 

14.00 CR2B 
 

 

19 August 2014 
 

19.30 CR2B  

18 September 2014 
 

14.00 CR2A  

16 October 2014 
 

19.30 CR2B  

11 November 2014 
 

14.00 CR2B  

16 December 2014 
 

19.30 CR2B  

7



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2014 
 

TITLE: CONSULTATION ON FEES UNDER THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

LEAD OFFICER(S): 
 

MICHAEL PITT, ENVIRONMENT AND 
LICENSING MANAGER (01279) 446114 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:  PAULINE WRIGHT, SENIOR 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER  
(01279) 446148 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Committee consider the Government’s proposals for locally-set fees for 

Licensing Act 2003 functions.  
 

B The Chairmanof Licensing Committee writes to the Home Office representing 
the Committee’s views in response to the consultation. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On introduction of the Licensing Act 2003, fees for licences and other related 

matters associated with the Licensing Act, were set centrally by Government. 
These fees have remained static since 2005. 
 

2. The Government is now proposing to make regulations to replace the 
nationally set fee scale with fees that are set locally by each Licensing 
Authority.  
 

3. The fee for a premises licence currently depends on the band into which its 
national non-domestic rateable value(NNDR) falls.  
 

Non-domestic Rateable Value Fee Band 

up to £4,300 A 

£4,301 to £33,000 B 

£33,001 to £87000 C 

£87,001 to £125,000 D 

: £125,001 and over E 

 
Fees currently range from £100 for a premises licence in Band A and £635 
for a premises licence in Band E and are shown in full atAppendix1 
 

4. Fees are payable for licence applications and variations; annual subsistence 

Agenda Item 8

8



 fees; temporary event notices; personal licence applications; replacement of 
lost or stolen licences; registered interest in a licensed premises; 
administrative fee for minor changes to a licence.Appendix 2 indicates 
current activity in Harlow including numbers of licensed premises, typical 
numbers for variation of licence applications, temporary event notices, 
personal licences and compliance activity based on year 2012-2013.  
 

5 Licensing Authorities are already under a duty to show economy and 
efficiency in their use of resources. 
 

 
PROPOSALS 

6 The Home Office is consulting on the following matters:  
 

a. Whether a link between non-domestic rateable value and premises 
licensing fees should be retained. Government does not believe that 
NNDR reliably reflects licensing costs and proposes to abandon it. 
Should consultees disagree, they are asked to provide evidence that 
supports their view. 
 

b. Whether the fact that premises are, or propose to be, licensed to a late 
hour (likely to mean between midnight and 06:00) is linked to Licensing 
Authorities’ costs. Should consultees disagree they are asked to 
provide evidence to support their view. 
 

c. Whether a fee-setting regime that allows for higher fees where 
premises are licensed to a late hour is practicable. Should consultees 
disagree they are asked to provide evidence to support their view. 
 

d. Whether local Licensing Authorities should be permitted to determine 
locally at what time between midnight and 06:00 any such additional 
fees for “late hours” should be applied.Should consultees disagree that 
the proposed “window” for local discretion is right, they are asked to 
state what alternative hours they think are appropriate.  

 
e. Whether the Licensing Authority should be permitted to waive the 

proposed “late hours” fees where premises open late only 
occasionally.Consultees are asked to give reasons.  
 

f. Whether use of premises primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises is linked to costs.  Consultees are 
asked to supply evidence. 
 

g. Whether it is practicable to apply additional fees to premises used 
primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the 

9



premises. Should consultees disagree they are asked to provide 
evidence to support their view. 
 

h. Whether the Licensing Authority should have discretion to apply an 
additional licensing fee only where both the “late hours” and the sale of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises” criteria were relevant.  
 

i. Whether the Licensing Authority should be permitted to waive 
proposed additional licensing fees for certain classes of premises. For 
example it might be reasonable to give discretion to the Licensing 
Authority to apply a “late hours” fee, but to waive it in the case of 
licensed restaurants or other premises that place relatively little 
demand on the licensing system. Consultees are asked to say for 
which kinds of premises this discretion could be used and to give 
reasons. 

 
j. Whether consultees have alternative proposals for local fee setting 

 
k. Whether the proposed “cap” level for each fee would provide for cost 

recovery. 
 

l. How Licensing Authorities should be required to consult on their 
locally-set fee proposals 
 

m. What approaches should be taken on giving guidance on fee setting 
and transition, on efficiency, and on the avoidance of ‘gold-plating’. 

 
n. Whether there should be a single annual fee date. 

 
o. Whether the impact assessment made by government is reasonable. 

 
Some relevant issues are discussed below 

 
ISSUES 
 
7. Cost Recovery 

Local authorities are expected to recover their legitimate costs through fees. 
It is Government’s view that locally-set fees will be better able to achieve this 
because of differing costs between local authorities.  
 
The Council is invited to send estimated costs to the Home Office as part of 
this consultation process. 
 

8. Variable Fees and Avoiding Cross-subsidisation 
Licensing Authorities are expected to avoid cross-subsidisation: a situation 
in which fees for one type of premises exceed costs, while fees for another 

10



type do not meet costs, even though overall there may be balance. 
 
It is proposed that Licensing Authorities, instead of applying one flat fee, 
should be permitted to charge greater fees for premises which cost more to 
license. There are two options discussed for this. One is to base an extra 
charge on the risk rating of the premises – the higher the risk rating the 
higher the fee. This will mean that local authorities will need to make sure all 
premises have a current risk rating which in itself will mean an additional 
cost for the local authority in establishing and maintaining formal risk-ratings.  
 
The second alternative system would be for classes of business to be 
established so that fees can be charged in accordance with the class.The 
consultation considers two ways of achieving this:  
 

a. A classification of premises authorised to provide licensable activities 
until a late terminal hour (likely to be prescribed as between midnight 
and 6am).The consultation will invite views as to whether this is a 
reasonable approach and if the time when a higher fee can be 
charged should be determined locally.  

b. Secondly whether or not the premises is used exclusively or primarily 
for the sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises.  

 
Government will considerwhether a and b above can be used singly, 
cumulatively or in combination, and propose to give Licensing Authorities 
discretion. There would be a “base” fee for those businesses that fitted 
neither a or b above, and the option to charge a different higher fees for 
businesses that fitted either a or b or both a and b.  
 
The intention is that Licensing Authorities reduce cross-subsidisation by 
making sure that the licence fee reflects actual costs for premises types 
without over-complicating the system. .  
 
However, consideration will be given to allowing Licensing Authorities waive 
higher fees for premises that only open late for certain days in the year such 
as New Year’s Eve or St. Patrick’s Day. 
 
Further,consideration will be given to allowing Licensing Authorities waive 
higher fees for premisesof certain types such as accommodation providers, 
theatres or cinemas which may be open late but not contributing to extra 
costs for the local authority. The Government, if it adopts with this option, will 
prescribe in law what these types of premises may be. 
 

9. Caps 
Fees are likely to be capped in each fee category in order to protect the fee 
payer from excessive fee levels. There will be a nationally agreed cap set by 
Government. A proposed cap level is shown in Appendix 3. It is intended 

11



that the caps will be set high enough to allow cost recovery by Licensing 
Authorities, and that they will be kept under periodic review.  
 
It is not suggested that the proposals reflect what most authorities will 
charge; rather it representsthe upper limit of cost for those local authorities 
that contributed to a study conducted by the Home Office in preparation for 
this consultation.Authorities approaching these upper limit costs are likely to 
be those in which there are a high number of licensing hearings.  
 
Caps for Temporary Event Notices. 
 
The current fee for a temporary event notice (TEN) is £21 which does not 
reflect the cost of the administration of this notice.TENs are regularly used 
by different types of applicant ranging from licensed businesses wishing to 
go beyond their current licence for an event, to community and charity 
groups. Government wish to permit cost recovery, but that costs are kept as 
low as practicable in order not to discourage such groups, and propose a 
cap on the cost of a TEN of £100. 
 

10. Single National Payment Date 
 
Currently fees are due on the anniversary of the issue of the licence. Some 
licence holders, especially those with multiple licences have expressed an 
interest in having a single payment date. 
 
From a local authority point of view this would produce a concentration of 
workload at one particular time of year which may have associated costs 
especially in the transitional year; costs will be reflected in the fees charged.  
 
The Home Office has stated that if they do introduce this it will be at a 
different time to the implementation of locally set fees to avoid over 
complication. 
 
There are other changes underway which may see further deregulation of 
the Licensing Act which are separate to this consultation. However the 
Government intends to introduce these changes at the same time as locally 
set fees; this means that activities which are to be deregulated will not be 
subject to the local fee setting process.  
 

11. Safeguards against excessive costs and “gold-plating” (exceeding the 
requirements of the Licensing Act) 
 
When calculating their fee local authorities will need to be mindful of their 
procedures for administering Licensing Act licences to make sure that these 
are not excessive and therefore more expensive.An example used in the 
consultation is writing to each householder near premises to alert them to a 

12



licence application, when the public notices and website entry will suffice. In 
Harlow, procedures follow the legislation and do not extend beyond this. 
 
Government advice will deal with allocation of central costs such as 
premises costs and “back-office” costs. A simple apportionment based on 
size of service seems unlikely to be acceptable: it is likely that a more 
detailed evidence based allocation will be required if the proposals are 
implemented. 
 

12. What can legitimately be included in the fee 
The cost of processing applications, the consultation process, the cost of 
hearings and visits to the premises, compliance visits to premises, the cost 
of liaising with other bodies such as the Police concerning existing licences, 
other departments, and conciliation meetings are legitimate costs. 
 
In addition cost should reflect such things as revising the licensing policy, 
maintaining public registers, and the cost of setting fees. 
 
It will be permissible to recover the cost of the Licensing Authority being a 
Responsible Authority. 
 
In setting fees, Licensing Authorities will need to be mindful of the Provision 
of Services Regulations 2009 which requires fees to be proportionate and 
not include for enforcement against unlicensed premises 
 
Fees will be challengeable and will be subject to audit. The Government is 
also minded to require that Licencing Authorities publish their fees. 
 

 
RESPONSE 
 
13. Officers’ initial views of the proposals in the form of potential responses to 

the specific consultation questions are provided at Appendix 4.  
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

Provided that an appropriate scheme is adopted, locally set fees that reflect the 
costs of licensing processes should support enterprise by countering any 
tendency to cross subsidisation. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 
 
 
 

13



Finance (Includes ICT) 
The introduction of locally set fees will involve additional processes for identifying 
appropriate and related costs but should ensure that, subject to the final 
Government guidance, the Council can recover in full the cost of licensing 
processes. The costs of taking enforcement action against unlicensed businesses 
may not be met by the collection of licensing fees. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  
 
Housing 

None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

Proposals to allow for additional fees to be waived for certain applicants which 
may benefit community based groups are welcomed.    
Author: Lynn Seward, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
The Council, by following Government guidance and legislation, will limit any 
challenge to its policy on fee setting when agreed.  The fees set will need to be 
transparent and be objectively justifiable to minimise any challenge to the Council 
after the fees have been set.  The cost of enforcement against unlicensed 
premises will have to be dealt with separately from the fee setting exercise. 
Author: Brian Keane, Interim Head of Governance 

 
 
Background Papers 
[These are papers referred to in the preparation of the report that are not 
attached as appendices but that are available for public or Councillor study.] 
 
A consultation on fees under the Licensing Act 2003 [Home 
Office]:https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/locally-set-licensing-fees 
 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
TEN        Temporary Event Notice 
NNDR     National Non-Domestic Rateable Value 
 

14



APPENDIX 1 

Current fee levels 

Band A B C D E 

Non domestic rateable value No 
rateable 
value to  
£4,300 

£4,301 
to 
£33,000 

£33,001 
to 
£87,000 

£87,001 
to 
£125,000 

Over 
£125,001 

Premises Licences 

Application for grant and 
variation 

£100 £190 £315 £450 £635 

Multiplier applied to premises 
used exclusively or primarily 
for the supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises  

N/A N/A N/A 2 x 
(£900) 

3 X 
(£1,905) 

Annual fee £70 £180 £295 £320 £350 

Annual charge multiplier 
applied to premises used 
exclusively or primarily for the 
supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises  

N/A N/A N/A  2 x 
(£640) 

3 x 
(£1,050) 

Club premises certificate  

Application for grant and 
variation  

£100 £190 £315 £450 £635 

Annual fee £70 £180 £295 £320 £350 

 

Other Licensing Act fees 

Application for the grant or renewal of a personal licence      £37 

Temporary Event Notice      £21 

Theft, loss etc or premises licence or summary      £10.50 

Application for a provisional statement where premise is being 
built etc 

     £315 

Notification of change of name or address      £10.50 

Application to vary a licence to specify individual as premises 
supervisor 

     £23 

Application to transfer a premises licence      £23 

Interim authority notice eg following death      £23 

Theft loss etc of certificate summary      £10.50 

Notification of change or name or alteration of rules of club      £10.50 

Change of relevant registered address of club      £10.50 

Theft loss, etc of Temporary Event Notice      £10.50 

Theft loss, etc of personal licence      £10.50 

Application to vary a premises licence to include alternative 
licence condition 

     £23 

Application for a minor variation to a licence certificate      £89 

Duty to notify change or name and address      £10.50 

Right or freeholder etc to be notified of licensing matters      £21 

 

15



APPENDIX 2 

Licence type Number  

Premises 186 

Club Premises   19 

Late night refreshment 

only 

  24 

Personal License 

Holders 

637 

 

Premises 

licence 

Achieved 

2012-13 

Sub-committee 

hearings 

New app 12 0 

Variations 7 0 

Renewals 186 0 

Surrender 4  

Replacement 19  

DPS changes 27  

Inspections  64  

Complaints 15  

Transfer of 

licence 

10 0 

Reviews 0 0 

Temporary 

Event Notices 

88  

 

 

Club 

Premises 

licence 

Achieved 

2012-13 

Sub-committee 

hearings 

New app 1 0 

16



Variations 2 0 

Renewals 20 0 

Surrender 0  

Replacement 0  

Inspections  0  

Complaints 4  

 

 

Personal 

licence 

holders 

Achieved 

2012-13 

Sub-committee 

hearings 

New app 58 0 

Renewals 0 0 

Surrender 0  

Replacement 14  

 

Enforcement 

Licensing Act 2012-2013 

Notice of Suspension 

of Licence 

56 

Licences suspended 4 

Post-inspection letter 8 

Post-inspection 

revisits 

6 

 

Service Requests 

 2012-13 

Licensing Act 42 

Licence Complaints 24 

 

17



APPENDIX 3 

Fee Category 
 

Proposed cap 

Processes that can result in hearings or include review hearings 
 

Application for the grant of a licence £2,400 

Application for a provisional statement  £2,400 

Application to vary a premises licence £2,400 

Application to vary premises licence to specify 
designated premises supervisor 

£105 

Application to vary a licence to remove 
requirement for a designated premises supervisor 

£105 

Application for the transfer of a premises licence £65 

Interim authority notice £114 

Annual fee payable by premises licence holder £740 

Application for the grant of a certificate £2,400 

Application to vary a certificate £2,400 

Annual fee payable by a club premises certificate 
holder 

£720 

Application for a grant or renewal of a personal 
licence 
 

£114 

Other processes under the Licensing  Act 2003 
 

Application to replace lost/stolen premises licence £46 

Notification of change of address of premises 
licence holder 

£46 

Application for minor variation of licence £244 

Application to replace lost or stolen certificate £46 

Notification of change of club rules or name £46 

Notification of change of address of club £46 

Application to replace lost or stolen temporary 
event notice 

£38 

Notification of change of name or address of 
personal licence holder 

£59 

Application to replace lost/stolen personal licence £59 

Notification of interest of freeholder etc 
 

£50 

 

18



APPENDIX 4 

CONSULTATION QUESTIONS 

Question 1 

Do you agree that the use of the National Non-domestic Rateable Value bands as a 

criterion for variable fee amounts should be abandoned? 

Answer: 

Agree    Disagree    Don’t know 

This method of calculating charges for premises does not necessarily reflect the cost 

to a local authority for processing applications, renewals, compliance checks and so 

on. Some larger premises that have a higher rateable value may be less expensive 

to administer than some smaller ones.   

Question 2 

If you disagree provide reasons. 

Answer N/A 

Question 3 

Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is authorise 

to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour is linked to costs? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 4 

In some cases this is likely to be the case as these premises may generate more 

complaints eg noise as people leave the premises in the small hours; however, it is 

not necessarily always going to be the case. Some premises are authorised to sell 

alcohol until a late terminal hour (after midnight) but do not avail themselves of this.  

It may create more work as businesses vary licences out of a late terminal hour 

bracket. Local authorities already have tools available to them in the form of Late 

Night Levy and Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Orders which are designed to 

tackle problem premises open after midnight.  

Question 5 

Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is 

authorised to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour sufficiently practical 

to implement. 

19



Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 6 

Implementation isn’t likely to be an issue of practicality as it is simple enough to find 

premises with authorisations to sell alcohol after midnight. There are currently 37 in 

Harlow. However, the question is more of fairness as some premises will not use 

their late night authorisation and some businesses will have not negative impact on 

the night time economy or entail any additional cost to local authorities than any 

other business. 

Question 7 

Do you agree or disagree that the licensing authority should be able to determine the 

hours during which the higher fee is payable within the boundaries of midnight and 

6am. 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 8 

It seems reasonable that local authorities should be able to determine the hours 

during which the high fee applies especially as the set fee should be reflective of 

costs. However, nationwide businesses may find this difficult because of the 

variance between local authority areas.  

Question 9 

Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities that impose higher fees for 

premises which open later should have discretion to exclude premises that are 

authorised to open late only on certain nights per year? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t  know 

Question 10 

Please state your reasons: 

If local authorities are given discretion they can determine if any single night causes 

an excessive demand on resources and thus has a cost implication. Otherwise there 

is a danger of cross-subsidisation if those open late one or two nights per year are 

included in the higher fee class absorb some of the cost of those open at that time all 

year round or are being charged disproportionately for staying open late for one or 

two night a year. 

20



Question 11 

Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is used 

primarily for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises is linked to costs? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree Don’t know 

Question 12  

Not all premises that offer wet sales only contribute to any extra costs for the local 

authority and many are run responsibly and cause no problems for their community. 

There are local public houses in Harlow that are primarily wet sales and have little or 

no negative impact on the night time economy. There is also scope for abuse by 

licence holders who seek to avoid paying the extra charge by offering food during the 

day but are primarily alcohol only sales during the evening; these premises may well 

have a negative impact on the night time economy whilst avoiding the extra licence 

costs.  

Question 13 

Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not premises are 

exclusively or primarily used for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises 

is sufficiently practical to implement? 

Answer:  

Agree      Disagree Don’t know 

Question 14 

If you do not agree please give reasons: 

There are some premises that claim an exemption because they serve some food 

although in reality consumption of alcohol on the premises is really the primary 

function of the premises; mainly evening and night with food sales largely during the 

day. Therefore although premises are primarily serving alcohol but with a side line of 

daytime food, it may be difficult to prove the local authority’s case and may result in 

lengthy discussions and disputes with licence holders about these matters.  

Question 15 

Do you agree or disagree that there should be discretion to apply higher fee amounts 

only where both criteria apply in combination? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

21



Question 16 

Do you agree or disagree that, if a licensing authority has determined that different 

fee amounts should apply. It should have discretion to exclude certain types of 

premises from that higher fee amount? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 17 

If discretion to exclude certain types of premises from a higher fee amount were 

available, what types of premises should be specified in the regulations as potentially 

excluded classes? Please give reasons: 

Single class of fees ie open late – premises such as hotels or theatres where there is 

little impact on licensing resources could be excluded. 

 Where the fee is in combination ie open late and primarily alcohol sales then no 

exemption should be permitted otherwise this could only be done based on the risk 

assessment for that premises which would entail additional work as these premises 

would need to be risk assessed on a regular basis which would then an additional 

cost for the licence fee.  

Question 18 

Are there any alternative options that should be available to licensing authorities to 

apply different fee amounts in their area? Please specify and set out your evidence; 

The fee needs to reflect the cost so in theory, this should be based on how much 

expense each business costs, which mainly will be the same. It is businesses that 

require more management from the local authority that result in more cost. In reality 

these are probably those premises which open late and sell primarily alcohol. The 

only real alternative would be to base a fee on the risk assessment value of each 

premises which is based on the type of sales (ie alcohol), the size of the venue, 

confidence in management and record of compliance/complaint history. There is no 

statutory requirement to inspect and risk-rate premises. In order to avoid dispute, risk 

assessments will need to be up-to-date. There would be a disproportionate expense 

to local authorities in ensuring all premises receive a risk-rating which would then 

need to be reflected in the cost of a licence. There would also need to be some 

guidance about when a ‘high risk’ premises could become a medium or low risk 

premises in order to avoid dispute with licence holders at subsequent licence 

renewals. Therefore this seems not to be a viable alternative to the proposed 

methods of fee differential. 

 

22



Question 19 

Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap levels will enable your licensing 

authority to recover costs? 

Answer; 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 20 

Do you have any other comments on the proposed cap levels?  

It is important that local authorities are not seen to make a profit from the 

administration of licences; when fees are set locally, there will inevitably be big 

differences between authorities in the cost of licences.A cap on fees will provide a 

safeguard for businesses against excessive costs and gold-plating. Local authorities 

will need to be transparent about how the fee is set but a cap ensure a degree of 

reasonableness in fee setting.  

Question 21 

Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap of £100 (Temporary Event Notices) 

will enable your licensing authority to recover costs? 

Answer: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 22 

Please provide evidence: 

Until the fee has been calculated in accordance with any appropriate guidance it is 

difficult to answer this question, however given that the fee is currently £21, it is likely 

that this will need to increase to reflect actual costs. In Harlow, it is rare that TEN’s 

will generate any objection from consultees or require a sub-committee hearing 

therefore a cap of £100 appears reasonable.  

Question 23 

Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities be required, before locally-set 

fees are implemented, to:  

23a: publish their proposed fee levels: 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

23b: Publish the basis on which they have been calculated 

Agree      DisagreeDon’t know 

23



23c: Publish the measures they have taken to keep costs down 

Agree      DisagreeDon’t know 

23d: Invite comments from interested parties 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 24 

What practical steps can licensing authorities take to secure efficiency? Max 20 

words. 

Question 25 

Do you agree or disagree that the guidance should suggest that these areas present 

a particular risk of excessive costs or gold-plating? 

25a: Notification of residents individually of licence applications in their area by letter 

(given that the existing duties to advertise on the premises and on the licensing 

authorities website enable the involvement of local residents, and that more cost 

efficient methods of further engagement may be available) 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

25b: Central re-charges, such as payments from the licensing budget to legal 

services or external communications. These should relate to costs actually incurred 

in the delivery of functions under the 2003 Act and not, for example, a standard 

percentage of central costs. 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

25c: The costs of discharging the statutory functions of licensing authorities that 

arise under other legislation, such as the duties arising under the Environmental 

Protection Act 1990. 

Agree      Disagree    Don’t know 

Question 26 

Do you think that there are other activities that may present a particular risk of 

excessive costs or gold-plating? Please state and give reasons for you answer in the 

box below, keeping your views to a max 200. 

In Harlow we stick to what is required of us under the law in terms of administering 

applications, therefore there is nothing which suggests that we are at risk of entailing 

excessive costs with our current procedures.  

 

24



Question 27 

Do you agree or disagree that there should be a single national payment date for 

annual fees? 

Agree      Disagree Don’t know 

This would require an unusual amount of work particularly in the preceding and first 

year of such a scheme; costs would need to be carried in the licence fee.On-going 

there will be an administrative glut at a particular time of year as invoices are sent 

out and received and the associated administrative work carried out which may have 

a negative impact on the other work carried out by the licensing teams. Multinational 

companies may find it easier for their administrative purposes. 

Question 28 

Do you think that the Impact Assessments related to the consultation provide an 

accurate representation of the costs and benefits of the proposal to move to locally-

set fees (including, in particular, the costs of setting fees locally)? 

 

Do you have any comments on the methodologies or assumptions used in the 

impact assessment? If so, please detail- max 200 words 

25


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Committee Work Plan
	7 Scheduling of Sub-Committee Hearings: Update
	Scheduling Sub-Committees Update Appendix A

	8 Consultation on Fees under the Licensing Act 2003
	Consultation on fee setting - Appendix 1
	Consultation on fee setting - Appendix 2
	Consultation on fee setting - Appendix 3
	Consultation on fee setting - Appendix 4


